AL-HIJRA SCHOOL CHILD CARE CENTRE



Parent Handbook

Licensed by the Ministry of Education

5100 Howard Ave. Oldcastle, ON N9H 0M3 Telephone: 519-966-8276 Fax: 519-966-0846 E-mail: <u>info@alhijraacademy.com</u> Website: <u>www.alhijraacademy.com</u>

Updated February 16, 2023

Table of Contents

1.	Program Statement 3			
2.	Administration 4			
	0	Management and Staff	4	
	0	Services Offered and Age Categories Served	4	
	0	Times of Services Offered and Hours of Operation	4	
	0	Holidays and Centre Closure	5	
	0	Inclement Weather	. 5	
	0	Emergency Management Policies and Procedures	5	
	0	Admission and Discharge Policy	.6	
	0	Waiting List Policy and Procedures	. 7	
	0	Fees and Payment Schedule	. 7	
	0	Arrivals and Departure Policy		
	0	Before and After School Care	.9	
	0	Late Pick-Up Policy	. 9	
	0	Parking	9	
3.	Health	and Medication Administration and Storage Policy	9	
	0	Medication Administration Policy	. 10	
	0	Parental Authorization to Administer Medication	. 10	
	0	Drug and Medication Requirements, Storage, and Administration	. 11	
	0	Record Keeping and Confidentiality		
	0	Anaphylactic and Serious Allergies Policies	. 11	
4.	Sympt	oms of Ill Health, Immunization & infection Control	. 12	
	0	Sick Children at School Policy	12	
	0	Immunization	. 12	
	0	Infection Control and Communicable Diseases	. 12	
5.	Food a	nd Nutrition	13	
	ο	Snack and Weekly Menu	. 13	
	ο	Food Restrictions		
6.	Additi	onal Policies and Procedures	13	
	0	Prohibited Practices	. 13	
	ο	Child Abuse Policy		
	0	Serious Occurrences and Reporting		
	0	Cold/Hot Weather Policy	. 16	
	ο	Sleep Supervision Policy		
	ο	Field Trips and Activities Off Premises		
	ο	Outdoor Activities, Play, and Walks		
	0	Playground Safety		
	0	Individual Support Plans Policy		
	0	Confidentiality and Privacy		
	0	Professional Conduct		
7.	Policie	s and Procedures Regarding Students and Volunteers		
	0	Roles and Responsibilities		
	0	Criminal Reference and Vulnerable Sector Checks		
8.	Parent	issues and Concerns Policy		
	0	Escalation of Issues or Concerns.		
	0	Parent Involvement, Obligations, and Responsibilities		
	0	Clothing and Possessions		
	0	Confidentiality		
	0	Parent Agreement	22	

1. Program Statement

At Al-Hijra School, we believe children are competent, capable of complex thinking, curious, and rich in potential. Children are essentially motivated to learn and when provided with enriched environments, nurturing adult interactions, support, and the freedom to explore, they can become self-motivated learners. Children are provided opportunities to select learning experiences based on their interest and curiosity. Children learn Islamic education and basic tenets of faith through the Quran and its language, Arabic. All the activities developed are age-appropriate to help foster cognitive, social, emotional, and physical development. Al-Hijra Academy Preschool program is a licensed child care program under Ontario Ministry of Education and Child Care and Early Years Act (2014). Al-Hijra is in compliance and committed to adopt the Ministry of Education's How Does Learning Happen? (HDLH) framework. At the heart of this framework are relationships. The foundations of HDLH include, belonging, well-being, engagement, and expression. This framework is the inspiration for our program statement.

https://files.ontario.ca/edu-how-does-learning-happen-en-2021-03-23.pdf

Al-Hijra School respects the dignity of students as well as the students' rights to an education in an Islamic school. It is operated on a non-discriminatory basis according to equal treatment and access to services without regard to race, religion, colour, or national origin. Islamic education is an integral part of the school curriculum and is required of all students.

Early childhood experiences help nurture, protect, and educate children, leading to healthy growth and development in safe environments. It is essential to build upon children's previous experiences and knowledge that they gain during preschool years, helping them to recognize themselves as valuable members who also contribute to their environment in many new and exciting ways, building self-esteem and confidence. Children have a variety of hands-on, interactive experiences during the day using different toys, materials, and textures to help develop gross and fine motor skills. Children also immerse in diverse language development and reasoning through oral, interactive, and play-based activities. Children participate in individual and group activities to help develop cooperation skills, teamwork, and age-appropriate problem-solving strategies. Children learn in a child-centered, hands-on, safe environment, designed to facilitate freedom to explore, and self-teach in play-based experiences. A daily schedule of activities is posted in the class with specific times for indoor activities, outdoor play, snack times, lunch time, and rest time during the day. Daily instructional plans are implemented in large blocks of time to allow children to explore and investigate hands-on, centre-based learning opportunities. They are provided opportunities to learn to select learning experiences based on their interest and curiosity. Students also learn Islamic education and basic tenets of faith during circle time in simple story telling, Nasheed (rhyme/song), or in narrative forms. All

curricular and extracurricular activities are designed in an age-appropriate manner to support and strengthen overall development of children in a safe and secure environment focusing on cognitive, social, emotional, and physical development. This program provides a high quality of child care by ensuring all children's well-being. This program ensures children's health and safety, and emotional security. It provides safe opportunities to make positive choices, learning through play-based activities and interactive centres, ensuring social, cognitive, emotional, and physical growth and development.

Early childhood caregivers at Al-Hijra School and Mosque Preschool Program are qualified, trained and experienced Early Childhood Educators. They use developmentally appropriate practices and consider the unique needs of all children when planning. Staff makes every attempt to make any adaptations or modifications necessary to meet the needs of the children.

2. Administration

Management and Staff

Al-Hijra Child Care operates under Al-Hijra Mosque and School, a non-profit community organization. Its school board is composed of elected members of the community and parents who volunteer to oversee its operations. The school principal and Ministry approved child care supervisor is responsible for all the child care operations, and reports to Al-Hijra School Board.

Al-Hijra child care staff are experienced Registered Early Childhood Educators. They regularly engage in professional development to maintain their registered status with the College of Early childhood Educators.

Services Offered and Age Categories Served

Al-Hijra School and Mosque Preschool Program welcomes all children and is committed to providing developmentally appropriate early learning and development experiences that support the full access and participation of each and every child. We believe that each child is unique, and we work in partnership with families and other professionals involved with the child to provide the support all children need to reach their full potential. The preschool program is offered to children from 31 months to 4 years of age and toilet trained. An interview will be arranged to familiarize the parents and child(ren) to the program and to answer any questions parents might have. Parents are asked to complete the registration forms providing emergency contact, and health and allergy information.

Times of Services Offered and Hours of Operation

The preschool program is available during the school year from September to June, and during the summer months of July and August it will be open subject to

enrollment. It is open Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Full time: Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Part time: Flexible schedule days, with a minimum of three times a week.

Holidays and Centre Closure

Al-Hijra Preschool is connected with Al-Hijra Academy and follows the school calendar for holidays and days off. The child care program is closed for Winter Break, March Break, the Islamic holidays of Eid ul Fitr and Eid ul Adha (subject to moon sighting), and the statutory holidays. Our school calendar is posted on our website at <u>www.alhijraacademy.com</u> and is provided to each family at the time of enrollment.

Inclement Weather

In case of inclement weather, school is closed. Our school follows Buskids.ca. If it is deemed unsafe for the buses to drive children to school, it is not safe for all parents and staff to be on the road. All parents are informed of school closure through text with the Remind App, the HiMama App, and by phone calls.

Emergency Management Policies and Procedures

Staff will follow the emergency response procedures outlined in this document by following these three phases:

- 1. Immediate Emergency Response;
- 2. Next Steps during an Emergency; and
- 3. Recovery.

Staff will ensure that children are kept safe, are accounted for and are supervised at all times during an emergency situation.

For situations that require evacuation of the child care centre, the **meeting place** to gather immediately will be located at **AI-Hijra School**.

If it is deemed 'unsafe to return' to the child care centre, the **evacuation site** to proceed to is located **northeast of the school building by the soccer field.**

Note: All directions given by emergency services personnel will be followed under all circumstances, including directions to evacuate to locations different than those listed.

For any emergency situations involving a child with an individualized plan in place, the procedures in the child's individualized plan will be followed.

• If any emergency situations happen that are not described in this document, AI-Hijra School administration will provide direction to staff for the immediate response and next steps. Staff will follow the direction given. • If any emergency situations result in a serious occurrence, the serious occurrence policy and procedures will also be followed.

All emergency situations will be documented in detail by staff and school office staff in the daily written record. In case of an emergency at the centre, parents will be informed as soon as it is safe by phone calls, through the HiMama App, and the Remind App.

Fire Safety Procedure

Al-Hijra has an efficient fire drill procedure that is practiced once a month to assist the children and staff in becoming well-organized in evacuating the building. The fire procedure is posted on the entrance doors and in the child care centre. Each room has the procedure for their room posted. All of our child care locations have an emergency shelter in the event we ever have to evacuate the building. This shelter is also posted in each room. The fire alarm system is serviced annually.

Lock Down Procedure

In the event that the area around the child care centre is deemed unsafe, we will follow the lock down procedure by securing the centre from any outside intruders. The procedure will include the following:

 \cdot Staff, upon notification from the office, the police, or supervisor will lock all doors and windows

· Close blinds/curtains

 \cdot Remain calm and continue with the lockdown until cleared by police or emergency services, or supervisor.

The supervisor will notify the local radio station in an effort to inform our parents of the lockdown and that they are unable to come to the centre at the current time. The office manager will temporarily disable the swipe system for the location involved so that nobody can enter the building. This lockdown procedure will be followed until the police notify us that the lockdown has been lifted and it is safe to open the doors. Upon the end of the state of emergency, parents will be informed and due process will be followed with the help of emergency services to get parents to pick up their children.

Admission and Discharge Policy

Children of all abilities are accepted into Al-Hijra School and Mosque Preschool Program. Families interested in having their child(ren) attend the program will be given an equal opportunity for admission. A waiting list is maintained and children are accepted from the list on a first-come-first-served basis. Parents can call the office at 519-966-8276 or email at info@alhijraacademy.com to check the placement number of the application on the waiting list. A registration fee of \$125.00 is charged at the time of acceptance of the application and confirmation of enrollment. Parents scheduled for part-time child care must adhere to scheduled days of care. Parents needing to make changes to their child's care schedule must inform the office within two (2) weeks before the services are needed.

Parents are asked to give two weeks' written notice to the office in case of permanent withdrawal. If the office does not receive this written notice, full program fees will be charged. A permanent space cannot be guaranteed if parents wish to temporarily withdraw their child(ren). In this case, child(ren) will be placed on a waiting list, and Al-Hijra School may terminate the services if policies are not followed or fees are not paid on time.

Waiting List Policy and Procedures

Al-Hijra Child care is open to all and every effort is made to accommodate parents requesting to enroll their children. Once the maximum capacity of the program has been reached and no more spaces are available to accommodate new applicants, a waiting list policy will be implemented. If the program has reached its maximum allowed number of enrollments, all applications on parental request will be placed on a waiting list. The waiting list will be maintained on first-come, first-served bases in a chronological order according to the date and time an application is received. When spaces become available, priority will be given to full-time applicants. Parents of the children on the waiting list will be informed by phone call of space availability. They must get back to the office within three (3) business days to accept the spot or it will be offered to the next applicant on the waiting list in chronological order.

Parents may call the supervisor to inquire about only their application place on the waiting list.

The waiting list is maintained in a manner to protect the privacy and confidentiality of the children and families. Names and information about children and families on the waiting list are not shared with anyone.

Fees and Payment Schedule

Payment Policy

Parents are required to pay monthly fees to the accounts office on the first of each month. If the first falls on a weekend or holiday, payment is due on the next business day. A late fee of \$30.00 will be charged for payments not made on time. Parents choosing to begin services before or after the first of the month, a daily rate will be applied for any days remaining for that month and must be paid at the time of enrolment.

Methods of Payment

Ten post-dated cheques can be made to "**AI-Hijra School**". Parents may choose to pay through direct deposit. All tuition fees of part-time and full-time registered students must

be paid regardless of absences or time off. If you need any further information, please contact the school office at 519-966-8276 or email at <u>info@alhijraacademy.com</u>

Delinquent Accounts

If fees are not paid within five (5) business days of the due date, the account will be considered delinquent. Child care services will not be provided until the outstanding fees are paid in full.

Returned Cheques/NSF

Cheques returned by the bank for any reason such as NSF, account closed, etc. will be subject to a \$30.00 service charge.

Refunds

Refunds or makeup days are not provided for child(ren) absences due to illness, vacation, personal events, or school closure due to inclement weather. Two weeks' written notice must be given to the office if parents choose to withdraw their child's enrollment at any time. Any funds paid for the rest of the month will not be refunded.

Tuition Fees Rates (CWELCC)

Al-Hijra Mosque and School has enrolled in the Preschool Program in Canada-Wide Early learning and Child Care Program (CWELCC) to help provide affordable child care to families. A one-time, non-refundable registration fee of \$125 is charged at the time of enrollment confirmation.

Full-Time Preschool	\$330.72 per month
Part-Time Preschool	\$250.39 per month
Before School	\$5.32 per half hour
After School	\$2.36 per hour

Financial assistance (child care subsidy) may be applied for through the City of Windsor Children's Services at 519-255-5312 or visit <u>https://onehsn.com/windsor</u>.

No fees are charged to parents to place children on the waiting list.

Arrivals and Departure Policy

Children are comfortable when set routines are established. We encourage parents to drop off their children at the preschool door on time. Parents must sign in and out their children at drop off and pick up. Preschool staff will meet the children at the door at arrival. Parents are to make sure they notify staff members of their children's arrival. They must personally accompany their children to class, sign in, and write their time of

arrival.

Similarly, when picking up their children, parents are to make sure to pick them up from the preschool door. Parents are to make sure that the staff member on duty knows parents are leaving with their children. Parents must sign out and record the time of departure. Unless the office is notified and it has been previously arranged, children will not be released to any other person other than those specified on the registration form.

Before and After School Care

Before and after school programs are offered to families who need before school and/or after school care during the week. Before school care starts at 7:30 a.m. until school starts, and after school care starts at 3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Before and after school care fees are charged at the rate of \$5.00 per half an hour increment. Parents can register for this service as needed. Only days scheduled at registration are allowed. Changes can be made by providing the office a one week's notice in writing.

Parents must escort their child to the main office in the morning, and sign in and out to before and after care programs at the time of drop off and pick up. Failure to do so will result in loss of services to the family. If a child is absent, there are no make-up days. Parents need to notify the school in writing at least one week in advance of any schedule change or known absences. Regular fees will be charged if parents fail to notify the school of any change in the schedule and attendance.

Late Pick-Up Policy

Late pick up after 4:00 p.m. will be subject to late fee of \$1.00 per minute. Al-Hijra offers a Before and After School Care program for the families who need it outside the school hours.

Parking

Parking slots near the preschool door are available for parents to use to park in during drop-off and pick-up times. If parents anticipate staying longer, they are to park beside the main office and report their arrival at the main office.

3. Health and Medication Administration and Storage Policy

The Child Care Early Years Act stipulates that prior to admission, each child must be immunized as recommended by the local medical health officer. Children entering with immunization exemptions must complete the Ministry of Education's form for immunization exemption. <u>https://www.ontario.ca/page/vaccines-children-school</u>

Regulations also require daily outdoor play for all children. Therefore, if a child is too ill to play outside, that child should remain home. If a child becomes ill during the

day, temporary care will be provided until parents are contacted and the child can be taken home.

Medication Administration Policy

Only medication that has been prescribed by a doctor and brought in the original container OR over the counter medication which is accompanied by a doctor's note will be administered. In order to administer over-the-counter medication, the parent/guardian MUST provide the centre with a doctor's note which includes the type (name) of medication and the instructions for dosage. This note can state "as described on the label". Parents will be required to periodically review the doctor's note and medication form to initial and change the dosage accordingly. PLEASE NOTE: Fever reducer will only be administered with the doctor's note while children are in child care. In special circumstances, such as febrile seizures we will continue to administer the medication when children are in the preschool rooms.

The parent/guardian is also required to fill out a consent form stating all of the following:

- The child's name
- ♦ Address
- Name of medication
- Date(s) for administration of medication
- Daily time schedule for administration
- Amount for each administration
- Reason medication is being prescribed
- Parent/guardian signature
- Date
- Expiry date of medication.

Parental Authorization to Administer Medication

In order for staff to give the medication, the "AUTHORIZATION FOR DRUG/MEDICATION ADMINISTRATION" form is to be completely filled out by the parents. Educators cannot fill out the form. It is the parents' responsibility to provide information. If a staff member gives medication to a child, it will be recorded on the medication chart and signed by the staff who administered it.

A separate form is required for every medication. The forms are available in each room and the office. All medication brought to the centre is required to be stored according to the label and locked up in medication boxes in the designated area out of reach of children. Please do not leave medication in your child's locker or bag, it must be handed to a teacher for safekeeping and proper storage. Please inform us when dropping off your child if they have received any medication prior to coming to the child care centre.

Drug and Medication Requirements, Storage, and Administration

Medication will only be administered when it is in its original container with the child's name and information clearly labeled. Staff will use the appropriate dispenser according to the instructions on the label and explicitly written on the Ministry of Education's drug and medication authorization form signed by the parents. A designated staff member will administer the medication and record the time and date it is dispensed.

Drugs and medications that are expired, or are not in compliance with drug and medication requirements will not be given to the child and will be returned to the parents.

Record Keeping and Confidentiality

Staff will keep a complete record of medication administration using the Records of Medication form, with the child's name, date, medicine given, and the time it is given to the child. If for any reason a dose is missed or given late, a reason will be documented, and parents will be informed as soon as possible. All information is placed in the child's file and will be kept in a secure location to maintain privacy and confidentiality.

Anaphylactic and Serious Allergies Policy

Anaphylaxis is a severe allergic reaction that occurs rapidly and causes a life-threatening response involving the whole body. For an anaphylactic reaction to occur, the child/person must have been exposed in the past to the substance that causes the reaction, known as the antigen. The reaction usually occurs within seconds to minutes of exposure. Occasionally, they are delayed.

Triggers of anaphylaxis include all types of substances. Only a trace amount of the trigger may be needed to cause a severe reaction. Some common triggers are

- · Medications (prescription or non-prescription)
- \cdot Venom of stinging insects
- · Foods commonly fish, shellfish, peanuts, nuts, fruits, wheat, milk, eggs
- · Food additives such as sulfites
- · Latex

It is for the above-mentioned reason that we insist that parents be mindful and inform the centre of any anaphylactic reaction their children have. The list of known allergies of enrolled children will be posted in all areas where children are expected to be, for example, in the food preparation area, food eating areas, and activity rooms.

Due to severe allergies and to mitigate any risk, parents are not allowed to bring any kinds of food or snacks into the centre. If a child has any allergies or any special dietary needs, the supervisor must be informed.

Inhalers

We have an action plan and Consent for Inhaler Administration form. If a child has an Inhaler, this form will be required to be filled out so that we clearly understand how and when it is to be administered.

EpiPens/Allerject

If a child has an EpiPen/Allerject we will require parents to fill out an EpiPen/Allerject Alert form and an Individual Treatment Plan form. We will require a current picture of the child to attach to the Alert From. Parents are responsible to ensure that their children's medication (which includes Tylenol, EPIPEN® /Allerject and puffers) have not expired.

4. Symptoms of III Health, Immunization, and Infection Control

Sick Children at School Policy

To ensure that all children stay safe and healthy, and the child care program stays as successful as possible, children who are sick should be kept home.

- A child with a fever may not attend school. Any child previously suffering from a fever must be fever free (without the help of any fever medication) for 24 hours before returning to school. Lengthy illnesses may require a doctor notification.
- A child developing fever should go home immediately.
- A child with diarrhea (liquid bowel movement) must go home, must be free of diarrhea (without anti diarrheal medication) for 24 hours before returning to school.

• Parents will be required to pick up their children if they are in an ill state of health. Students who are ill at school should only be allowed to leave school after telephone contact with a parent, guardian, or person on the student's emergency contact list has been made. This contact may be made by office personnel or a teacher, and the child is signed out and picked up by the parent.

Immunization

Parents are responsible to keep their children's immunization records up to date. They are required to provide a copy of the child's immunization records at the time of registration. These records are shared with Windsor Essex County Health Unit (WECHU). Immunization exemptions or objections must be completed on the ministry-approved form and will be retained on record. The Statement of Conscience or Religious Belief forms must be completed by a commissioner for taking affidavits. Statement of Medical Exemption forms must be completed by a doctor or nurse.

Infection Control and Communicable Diseases

If a student has a communicable disease such as chicken pox, measles, mumps, etc., parents should notify the school immediately. Children with communicable diseases

must stay home from school until written approval from a physician is submitted.

5. Food and Nutrition

Snacks and Weekly Menu

Children in the program are provided with two healthy snacks and a nutritious lunch during the day. All snacks and meals are prepared according to Health Canada's Nutritional Guides. Menus are planned monthly and e-mailed to the parents during the last week of the month for the upcoming month. Any modifications are re-emailed to the parents with updates. The menus feature a variety of foods (e.g., hummus, pasta, meat pies, etc.) Every day, fresh lunches are prepared on the premises and healthy snacks are provided. In the morning and afternoon, teachers offer a free-flowing snack to encourage children to come to the table when they are ready. A teacher sits with the children while encouraging them to serve themselves different foods and be independent. Educating children about fruits and vegetables is part of the curriculum. Teachers incorporate cooking and baking activities into the curriculum as they discuss nutrition and good eating.

In order to mitigate the risk of anaphylactic reactions or allergy risks, allergy lists are posted in the kitchen and in the classroom.

Food Restrictions

Parents are not allowed to send any food with their children nor are they allowed to send any outside food to the child care to help mitigate the risk of anaphylactic reactions or allergies.

6. Additional Policies & Procedures

Prohibited Practices

The Child Care and Early Years Act is clear on interactions with children in our care. All individuals working with children are expected to follow these guidelines at all times. Subsection 5.6 of The Child Care early Years Act lists the following actions as prohibited practices with respect to a child receiving child care at a child care centre:

Under no circumstance will corporal punishment be used for behaviour management. As well, the following control techniques are not tolerated: *Inappropriate Verbal Practices:*

- o Humiliation;
- o Threatening;
- o Swearing;
- o Harassment;
- o Yelling;

- o Sarcasm;
- o Discussion of a child within any child's hearing;
- o Deprivation of basic needs including food, shelter, clothing, or bedding;
- o Confinement, either by locking exits of a room or use of a lockable structure;
- No physical restraint of the child (such as confining the child to a chair) for the purposes of discipline of supervision, unless the physical restraint is for the purpose of preventing a child from hurting himself, herself, or someone else, and is used only as a last resort, and only until the risk of injury is no longer imminent;
- o Corporal punishment of the child;
- Locking the exits of the child care centre or home child care premises for the purpose of confining the child, or confining the child in an area or room without adult supervision, unless such confinement occurs during an emergency and is required as part of the licensee's emergency management policies and procedures;
- Use of harsh or degrading measures or threats or use of derogatory language directed at or used in the presence of a child that would humiliate, shame, or frighten the child or undermine his or her self-respect, dignity or self-worth;
- o Depriving the child of basic needs including food, drink, shelter, sleep, toilet use, clothing, or bedding; or
- Inflicting any bodily harm on children, including making children eat or drink against their will.

Child Abuse Policy

Concerns About the Suspected Abuse or Neglect of a Child

Everyone, including members of the public and professionals who work closely with children, is required by law to report suspected cases of child abuse or neglect. Persons who become aware of such concerns are responsible for reporting this information to Children's Aid Society (CAS) as per the "Duty to Report" requirement under the *Child and Family Services Act*.

It is an important responsibility to follow through on the child abuse report to CAS, every effort will be made to support the person reporting. Make sure to give your name, name of the centre, your position and contact information to the CAS worker. Ask and note date, time and the name of the CAS worker you reported the incident to.

• Any person working with children who suspects any form of abuse or risk for abuse must immediately report to CAS. A person who suspects abuse must

report it, him/herself and call CAS and must not designate anyone else to do so. Do not discuss suspicion with anyone until one has spoken to CAS worker.

- If necessary, immediately seek medical help in case the child has sustained any injuries due to abuse. Where suspicious, that injuries are caused by abuse, inform a CAS worker immediately and follow the duty to report process.
- If there are any concerns or doubts about reporting a situation, it is encouraged to consult a CAS worker.
- It is a legal duty to report. No person in any capacity should hinder or deter any one from the duty to report. Disciplinary action will result if there is an attempt made to stop or deter anyone from reporting and following a legal duty to report.
- If a person has any further suspicion of abuse or any information pertaining to abuse with respect to the child, they must report irrespective of any previous reports.
- All persons must follow through with the duty to report, as there is no information considered confidential if it is related to a suspicion of child abuse.

For more information, visit

http://www.children.gov.on.ca/htdocs/English/childrensaid/reportingabuse/index.aspx

Serious Occurrences and Reporting

Accident and Injury Procedures

Any serious occurrences will be reported to the Ministry through the CCLS system within a 24-hour period.

- Essential first aid will be administered by the classroom teacher or supervisory personnel available. In the event of a serious injury, the child will be referred to the staff member with first aid training.
- It is very important that changes in home phone numbers, emergency numbers, or family doctors' numbers are reported immediately to the school secretary. If the child requires emergency medical treatment, parents or guardians will be contacted.
- In the event of an illness, if necessary, the parents/guardians will be contacted immediately and asked to take the child home.

Parental Complaints Procedures

- Usually, student or parent complaints or concerns can be addressed simply by a phone call or a conference with a teacher. For those complaints and concerns that cannot be handled so easily, the following are steps to resolve all complaints:
- If the administration finds that a child's behaviour and/or actions are endangering the safety of the other children and staff, a conference will be arranged with the

parents, the child's teacher, and the director/supervisor.

- It is the right of all children and staff to learn, teach, work, and interact in a safe and secure environment free from any form of violence, threat, sexual connotations or gestures, abuse, mistreatment, harassment, derogatory or degrading conditions. It is expected that parents, guardians, children, and staff share the responsibility for creating an environment that is safe and secure for learning and teaching.
- Should a child exhibit any of the forms of violence listed above toward another child or staff, the parent or guardian will be called to come and pick up the child immediately. A letter of warning will be issued stating that if the same form or any other form of violence is exhibited at any time during the course of the child's care at the preschool, they will be permanently removed from the services.

Cold/Hot Weather Policy

According to the Ontario Regulation 137/15 47(1), every licensee shall ensure that the program in each child care centre it operates is arranged so that, each child who receives child care for six (6) hours or more in a day spends time outdoors for at least two (2) hours each day, weather permitting, unless a physician or parent of the child advises otherwise in writing.

The Child Care and Early Years Act mandates two (2) hours of outdoor play and activities for children 2 1/2 years of age and older. Children go outside regularly for this period of time. The supervisor will determine the time of outdoor play when the temperatures are at or below -15C or -20C with the windchill factor and weather conditions to shorten the activities outdoors.

During the summer, if temperatures are between 30C to 39C with a UV index between 8 and 10, outdoor activities will be limited and for a shorter duration. The supervisor will determine whether or not to not take children outdoors.

Sleep Supervision Policy

Every child receiving care for six (6) hours or more in a day has a rest period not exceeding two (2) hours in length. All children will regularly have a naptime; if the child does not sleep, they will rest or engage in quiet activities based on the child's needs. Children will always be supervised and monitored during sleep time. All children will be assigned cots in accordance with Ontario regulation 137/15. Parents will provide their children with a sheet, a pillow, and a blanket for sleep time. Each child's belongings will be clearly labeled with their name to ensure not sharing with another child. All bedding materials will be sent home regularly on Fridays to be washed and sent back with the children when they return Monday. All cots will be sanitized regularly. All children will have an area designated for sleep, which will be lit for direct visual checks during sleep. Direct visual checks will be conducted frequently on each child by being physically

present beside the child. They will be constantly monitored during their sleep time. Any significant changes in a child's sleeping pattern will be recorded and communicated to their parents and adjustments will be made in consultation with the parents as needed for that child. If there are written recommendations for a child regarding sleep, written records are kept up-to-date and are made available for inspections.

Field Trips and Activities Off Premises

Children in the program do not go off the premises. They regularly go on outdoor nature walks on the premises. Occasionally, field trips are arranged to a local grocery store or an orchard. A letter with details of the activity and a consent form are sent home.

Outdoor Activities, Play, and Walks

The Ministry of Education requires that children play outside a minimum of two (2) hours a day if they spend more than six (6) hours at the preschool, unless a parent or a physician advises otherwise. Please ensure that your child has all the clothing necessary to enjoy snow, mud, and the sun. For safety reasons, mittens cannot be on strings, but clips are acceptable.

All items MUST BE LABELED WITH YOUR CHILD'S NAME. If the weather does not permit outside play (i.e., raining, temperatures too cold or hot), gross motor activities will be offered indoors. If the current weather is fine but the playground is too wet due to recent rain, the children may go for walks.

Parents will be required to sign a consent form for their child to be able to participate in a field trip. The Child Care and Early Years Act requires parent volunteers to have a Vulnerable Sector Check in order to volunteer on field trips. The supervisor must view and copy your original document. Special circumstances may apply; please see the supervisor. During field trips or walks, our educators carry a small first aid kit, children's emergency information, EpiPens, Allerjects, and inhalers if required.

Mosquito Weather: During the spring and summer, we will make every effort to keep the playground clear of standing water to avoid having mosquito issues. When they are very bothersome, we will bring the children inside. Parents are responsible to apply an insect repellent on their child's clothing or skin should they wish to do so.

Sunscreen - Parents are responsible to apply sunscreen on their child in the morning before arriving at the centre. Our educators will reapply sunscreen in the afternoon. We will provide the sunscreen for the afternoon; parents will be required to sign to give us approval. Should parents prefer to provide their own sunscreen, the educators will apply this in the afternoon.

All children in preschool are separated from other age groups during active indoor and outdoor play periods.

Playground Safety

A designated staff member will conduct visual inspections daily and maintain record completing daily, monthly, and annual inspection logs and action plans. Staff-to-child ratios will be maintained at all times, irrespective of indoor or outdoor activities.

Daily inspections will be conducted for debris or litter, any loose strings, ropes, or unsafe materials in the play area. It will be removed and a daily log will be maintained. The office will be notified if the area needs attention to ensure a safe, clean play area. Monthly inspection will be conducted to monitor any damage, wear and tear, and any unsafe playground equipment. No children will be allowed to enter until the damage is fixed. Annual comprehensive inspection and a written report will be conducted. Any repairs or maintenance needs identified in the report will be followed up on and completed with written evidence of repairs, and proof of work will be kept on file for record purposes.

Individual Support Plans Policy

An up-to-date individualized support plan is in place for each child with special needs who receives child care in a child care centre. A description of how the child care centre will support the child to function and participate in a meaningful and purposeful manner while the child is in the care of the centre will be written in a plan. The plan includes a description of any support or aids, adaptations, or other modifications to the physical, social, and learning environment that are necessary, as well as with its instructions. This individualized plan is made in consultation with a parent of the child and any regulated health professional.

For a child with medical needs, an individualized plan will be developed in consultation with parents, and include steps to reduce the risk of the child being exposed to any causative agents that may exacerbate a medical condition. The plan includes a description of the procedure to be followed in the event of an allergic reaction or other medical emergency.

Confidentiality and Privacy

Every issue and concern will be treated confidentially and every effort will be made to protect the privacy of parents/guardians, children, staff, students and volunteers, except when information must be disclosed for legal reasons (e.g., to the Ministry of Education, College of Early Childhood Educators, law enforcement authorities or a Children's Aid Society).

Confidentiality applies to all verbal and written information about potential, enrolling, and previously enrolled children and their families. All staff will be briefed on the need for confidentiality and stored in a secure location with access limited to the director and the child's teacher. No information will be released about a child and the parent/legal guardian during enrollment or transition to another receiving program or school without first receiving the written permission of the parent/guardian. This excludes the responsibility held by early childhood educators as mandated reporters of suspected child abuse and neglect as outlined in the province of Ontario law or when information is subpoenaed by the court.

Professional Conduct

Our centre maintains high standards for positive interaction, communication, and role-modeling for children. Harassment and discrimination will therefore not be tolerated from any party. If at any point a parent/guardian, provider, or staff feels uncomfortable, threatened, abused, or belittled, they may immediately end the conversation and report the situation to the supervisor and/or licensee.

7. Policies and Procedures Regarding Students and Volunteers

Roles and Responsibilities

Volunteers are considered definitive assets to our school. Their roles are both generally needed and appreciated by Al-Hijra School staff, administration, and students. Volunteers may assist in different areas of school upon approval by the principal/ supervisor. The determining factors in the selection of volunteers may include, but are not limited to personal suitability, experience, performance, demonstrated responsibility, and/or skills beneficial to the assignment.

Criminal Reference and Vulnerable Sector Checks

If parents would like to volunteer they have to also provide Criminal Reference Check before beginning any task involving working with children. All placement students and volunteers will always be supervised by a staff member and are not permitted to work alone at any time with children. All individuals interacting with children are required to provide original Criminal Reference Checks and a Vulnerable Sector check prior to starting in any position at the facility.

All students and/or volunteers must adhere to professional conduct and maintain confidentiality at all times. All students and/or volunteers must review and implement all the policies and procedures and sign a record of review. If they have any concerns, they must adhere to "Duty to Report" under the Child and Family Services Act.

Criminal Reference Check and Vulnerable Sector Check must be repeated every five (5) years. An offense declaration needs to be signed by the individual listing all of the individuals' convictions for offenses under Criminal Code every year. Al-Hijra School Board collects a criminal background check on all teachers, placement students, and volunteers and all individuals working in the centre. All placement students and volunteers always work under the supervision of a staff member and do not work alone with children at any time.

8. Parent Issues and Concerns Policy and Procedures

Parents and/or guardians are encouraged to take an active role in our child care centre and regularly discuss what their children are experiencing with our program. As supported by our program statement, we support positive and responsive interactions among the children, parents/guardians, child care providers and staff, and foster the engagement of ongoing communication with parents/guardians about the program and their children. Our staff are available to engage parents/guardians in conversations and support a positive experience during every interaction.

All issues and concerns raised by parents/guardians are taken seriously by Al-Hijra School and will be addressed. Every effort will be made to address and resolve issues and concerns to the satisfaction of all parties. Issues/concerns may be brought forward verbally or in writing. Responses and outcomes will be provided verbally, or in writing upon request. The level of detail provided to the parent/guardian will respect and maintain the confidentiality of all parties involved. An initial response to an issue or concern will be provided to parents/guardians within two (2) business days. The person who raised the issue/concern will be kept informed throughout the resolution process. Investigations of issues and concerns will be fair, impartial, and respectful to all parties involved.

Escalation of Issues or Concerns

Where parents/guardians are not satisfied with the response or outcome of an issue or concern, they may escalate the issue or concern verbally or in writing to Al-Hijra School Board.

Issues/concerns related to compliance with requirements set out in the *Child Care and Early Years Act., 2014* and Ontario Regulation 137/15 should be reported to the Ministry of Education's Child Care Quality Assurance and Licensing Branch. Issues/concerns may also be reported to other relevant regulatory bodies (e.g., local public health department, police department, Ministry of Environment, Ministry of Labour, fire department, College of Early Childhood Educators, Ontario College of Teachers, College of Social Workers, etc.) where appropriate.

Key Contacts:					
Al-Hijra School Supervisor: Waheeda Khan					
Phone : 519-966-8276	E-mail : principal@alhijraacademy.com				
Ministry of Education, Licensed Child Care Help Desk:					
Phone: 1-877-510-5333	E-mail: <u>child care_ontario@ontario.ca</u>				

Parent Involvement, Obligations, and Responsibilities

- Make certain to always have current emergency contact names and telephone numbers.
- Advise educators of any allergies, medical conditions, and medications their children have received before coming to the child care centre.
- Arrange for alternative care when their children are not well enough to participate fully in the program.
- Call the centre if their children are going to be absent before 9:30 a.m.
- Call the centre if their children are not going to be coming off their bus (if applicable) after school.
- Label all of their children's belongings, and be sure they have spare clothing and appropriate outdoor clothing.
- Discourage their children from bringing toys from home.
- Be sure to read all notices posted throughout the child care centre and HiMama App.
- WITHOUT A COURT ORDER ON FILE, the staff are unable to legally prevent the release of a child to their non-custodial parent. WE MUST HAVE A COPY ON FILE. We ask that a photo be included for easy identification.
- Parents must comply with all policies and procedures contained in the Parent Handbook and Program Statement.

Clothing and Possessions

ALL children are required to have a change of clothes at school. These clothes are required for accidents such as spilled juice or a toileting accident. The clothes must be CLEARLY LABELED WITH THE CHILD'S NAME and be kept in a bag in their locker. If children take home soiled clothing, clean clothes must be replaced the next day. The child care centre has a limited supply of spare clothes. If children wear any of these clothes home, they must be cleaned and returned immediately. Children who attend a full-day program need to be provided with a crib-size blanket for sleep time, labeled with the child's name. Blankets will be sent home on a regular basis to be washed. Blankets must return with the children to the child care the next day they attend. ALL FOOD AND TOYS SHOULD BE LEFT AT HOME. The preschool rooms occasionally have Show & Tell Day. This is the ONLY time the children should be bringing a toy.

Every child has been designated a locker labeled with their name for their belongings. Be sure to check their locker daily for soiled clothing, items, or notes that may need to go home

Confidentiality

Every issue and concern will be treated confidentially and every effort will be made to protect the privacy of parents/guardians, children, staff, students and volunteers, except

when information must be disclosed for legal reasons (e.g., to the Ministry of Education, College of Early Childhood Educators, law enforcement authorities, or Children's Aid Society).

Confidentiality applies to all verbal and written information about potential, enrolled, and previously enrolled children and their families. All staff will be briefed on the need for confidentiality and stored in a secure location with access limited to the director and the child's teacher. No information will be released about a child and the parent/legal guardian during enrollment or transition to another receiving program or school without first receiving the written permission of the parent/guardian. This excludes the responsibility held by early childhood educators as mandated reporters of suspected child abuse and neglect as outlined in the province of Ontario law or when information is subpoenaed by the court.

Parent Agreement

I have read and I understand the policies and procedures of Al-Hijra School Child Care Program. I agree to abide by all the policies and procedures in the Parent Handbook.

Child's Name:					
Parent's Name:					
Signature:	Date:				